
 
VERDANT HEALTH COMMISSION 

PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 2 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Meeting 
A  G  E  N  D  A 

September 26, 2018 
8:00 to 10:15 a.m. 

 
 
 ACTION TIME PAGE 
 
A. Call to Order  --- 8:00 --- 
 
B. Approval of the Minutes 

a) August 22, 2018 Board Meeting  Action 8:01 1-5 
 

C. Executive Committee Report Information 8:02 --- 
 
D. Superintendent Report Information 8:05  6 
 
E. Finance Committee Report 

a) Review financial statements and cash activity Information 8:10 7-11 
b) Authorization for payment of vouchers and payroll Action 8:15 12 
 

F. Program Committee Report & Recommendations  
 a) Conflicts of Interest --- 8:17 --- 
 b) Program investment recommendations Action 8:18 13-16 
 c) Building Healthy Communities Fund Q&A  Presentation 8:30 17-18 
 d) Commissioner decision on  Action 9:45 19-21 

Building Healthy Communities Fund 
 e) Verdant Community Wellness Center activities update Information --- 22-23 
 f) Verdant multicultural program update Information --- 24 
  
G. Marketing Report Information --- 25 
 
H. Public Comments (please limit to three minutes per speaker) --- 10:00 --- 
  
I. Commissioner Comments --- 10:05 --- 

 
J. Adjournment --- 10:15 --- 
 



 
PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 2 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

VERDANT HEALTH COMMISSION 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Meeting 

Verdant Community Wellness Center 
August 22, 2018 

 
Commissioners 
Present 

Deana Knutsen, President 
Bob Knowles, Commissioner 
Fred Langer, Commissioner 
Karianna Wilson, Secretary (8:04 a.m. arrival) 
 

Staff Robin Fenn, Superintendent 
George Kosovich, Assistant Superintendent 
Lisa King, Finance Director 
Jennifer Piplic, Marketing Director 
Sue Waldin, Community Wellness Program Manager 
Sandra Huber, Community Engagement 
Nancy Budd, Community Social Worker 
Karen Goto, Executive Assistant 
 

Staff Excused Sue Waldin, Community Wellness Program Manager 
 

Call to Order 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of 
Public Hospital District No. 2, Snohomish County, was 
called to order at 8:01 a.m. by President Knutsen.  
President Knutsen welcomed back Commissioner 
Langer from his recent work sabbatical. 
 

Approval of Minutes 
 

Motion was made, seconded and passed unanimously 
to approve the minutes of the regular board meeting 
on July 25, 2018.  
 

Executive 
Committee Report 

The committee met on August 15, 2018 to review the 
agenda for the August 22, 2018 board meeting and to 
discuss the executive session materials and review 
upcoming Verdant events.  No action was taken. 
 

Superintendent 
Report 

Superintendent Fenn reported on the following items: 
1. The 2017 Annual Report is complete and thank you 

to Ms. Piplic for her work on it. 
2. See the September 2018 calendar of upcoming 

events (E:68:18) that commissioners may be 
interested in attending.   

Page 1



Commissioners Meeting 
August 22, 2018 
Page 2 

 

3. Because of the time needed to discuss the Building 
Healthy Communities Fund applications in today’s 
meeting, there will only be a report on the finances 
and programs.  Wellness Center, Multicultural 
Programs, Social Worker, and Marketing updates 
will return in future regular board meetings. 

 
Finance Committee 
Report 
 

The committee met on August 15, 2018.  Ms. King 
reviewed the financial statements and cash activity for 
July 2018 (E:69:18).   

Authorization for 
Payment of 
Vouchers & Payroll 
 

Warrant Numbers 12992 through 13042 for July 2018 for 
payment in the amount of $54,043.65 were presented 
for approval (E:70:18).  Motion was made, seconded 
and passed unanimously to approve. 
 

Program Committee 
Update 

The Program Committee met on August 15, 2018 to 
review three regular program applications (E:71:18).  
Commissioner Knowles asked if there were any conflicts 
of interest and none were reported by the 
commissioners present.  
Mr. Kosovich presented the requests and Commissioner 
Knowles presented the committee recommendations 
to the board. 
Motion was made, seconded and passed unanimously 
to approve the VaxPoint LLC d/b/a Seattle Visiting 
Nurses Association Flu Vaccine Program request for full 
funding for flu vaccines in the south Snohomish County 
area clinics at food banks, schools, libraries, and 
Edmonds Community College.  Commissioner Knowles 
reported that the vaccine sites will be encouraged to 
assist people with health plan enrollment. Verdant will 
pay on a per vaccine basis. 
Motion was made, seconded and passed unanimously 
to approve Alderwood Middle School Trauma Informed 
Intervention Program in the amount of $75,000 for one 
more year with the option to renew for two additional 
years. 
Before the motion, Commissioner Langer asked for 
clarification on why this program is needed and how 
the data are measured.  The program is needed 
because of Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) 
effect on students’ future health and wellness. 
Motion was made, seconded and passed unanimously 
to approve Homage Senior Services Center for Healthy 

Page 2



Commissioners Meeting 
August 22, 2018 
Page 3 

 

Living renewal program for 3.25 more years at $592,040 
per year with a 3% annual increase in year 2 and year 3 
to support ongoing programs, less the non-core case 
management program. 
Commissioner Wilson inquired about information 
needed by Verdant to decide on this aspect of their 
program.  She also asked about the 3% annual increase 
and Mr. Kosovich confirmed that is to account for 
annual inflation. 
Commissioner Knutsen commented that she would like 
more information on the non-core case management 
before Verdant considers funding it separately from the 
current program funding.  
 

Building Healthy 
Communities Fund 
review 
 

Mr. Kosovich explained the process that will be used in 
today’s meeting.  At the July 2018 board meeting, the 
board reviewed the Program Committee’s 
recommendation to consider the top nine of the 14 
submitted applications. Today, the board will 
determine which of the nine applicants they would like 
to have return to provide additional information at the 
September 26, 2018 board meeting (E:72:18) and the 
board can ask general questions about the proposals.  
The board’s interest in each proposal will be gauged to 
see if there are, at least, two commissioners interested 
in the application, which would then move the 
application forward. Superintendent Fenn clarified that 
the board will develop the questions they have for the 
applicants.  After the Q&A session with applicants on 
September 26, 2018, the board will make its final 
decision on funding.  Commissioner Wilson will not be in 
attendance at the September meeting, but quorum will 
be met with Commissioners Knutsen, Knowles and 
Langer. 
Summary of the nine applications and the board’s 
interest for each under the categories of access to 
care, increase in physical activity, or both: 

1. CHC of Snohomish County – Integrated Pain 
Management and Recovery Services 
Commissioners Wilson & Knutsen are interested. 

2. Medical Teams International – Mobile Dental 
Program Multi-Site Delivery Vehicle 
Commissioners Wilson, Knutsen and Knowles are 
interested. 

Page 3



Commissioners Meeting 
August 22, 2018 
Page 4 

 

3. SeaMar CHC – Lynnwood Clinic 
Commissioners Knutsen and Knowles are 
interested. 

4. City of Lynnwood – South Lynnwood Park 
Commissioner Knutsen is interested. Project does 
not move forward. 

5. Town of Woodway – Deer Creek Park Walking 
Trail 
All commissioners interested and due to the small 
size of the request, a motion was made, 
seconded and passed unanimously to fund this 
proposal. 

6. City of Edmonds – Edmonds Outdoor Fitness 
Commissioners Knutsen and Langer are 
interested. 

7. City of Mountlake Terrace – Evergreen Playfields 
Commissioners Knutsen, Knowles and Langer are 
interested. 

8. Edmonds Senior Center – Waterfront Center 
No commissioners expressed an interest. Project 
does not move forward. 

9. Volunteers of America – Lynnwood 
Neighborhood Center 
No commissioners expressed an interest. Project 
does not move forward. 
 

Commissioners identified questions that they would like 
answered at the September board meeting for those 
applicants moving forward.  Mr. Kosovich will contact 
these applicants and provide them with the questions 
prior to the September meeting. 

 
Public Comments Mr. Farrell Fleming of the Edmonds Senior Center 

expressed his disappointment with the decision to not 
move the senior center’s BHCF application forward and 
asked if there is any possibility that the board would 
change their mind. 
Ms. Kit Massengale from Homage thanked the board 
for approving funding for the Center for Healthy Living 
programs. 
 

Commissioner 
Comments  
 

President Knutsen commented that organizations can 
continue to request non-capital funding from Verdant 
for  programs outside of the Building Healthy 
Community Fund RFP process.  She said Verdant is 

Page 4



Commissioners Meeting 
August 22, 2018 
Page 5 

 

 
 
ATTEST BY:  
 
   
 President 
  
   
 Secretary 

always open to more conversations about future 
programs. 
 

Commissioner 
Candidates 
Comments 
 

Three of the four candidates who applied were in 
attendance and gave a brief comment on why they 
were interested in the open position. 

1. James Distelhorst, M.D. 
2. Adrianne Wagner, MHSA, FACHE 
3. Henry Veldman, LFACHE 

 
Executive Session President Knutsen adjourned the regular meeting at 

9:35 a.m. into Executive Session to review the 
qualifications of the four commissioner applicants. 
President Knutsen stated that the board would 
reconvene in 15 minutes and no action would be taken 
in Executive Session.    
At 9:50 a.m. President Knutsen extended the Executive 
Session for 3 minutes.  
 

Open Session The board reconvened into Open Session at 9:53 a.m. 
President Knutsen stated that the board is interested in 
interviewing all four commissioner candidates at the 
October 3, 2018 Special Meeting.  
Superintendent Fenn stated that the October 3rd 
special meeting will include the 2019 budget discussion, 
then interviews for the board with the candidates one 
at a time. 
President Knutsen thanked the candidates for applying 
for the open board position. 
 

Adjourn The meeting was adjourned at 9:57 a.m. 

Page 5



OCTOBER 2018 

Sunday  Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday  Saturday 
  1  2  3 

Special Board 
Meeting 6p‐8:30p 
Verdant Wellness 
Center 

4 
Domestic Violence 
Services luncheon, 
11:30a‐1p, Angel of 
the Winds in 
Everett 

5  6 

7  8  9  10 
Providence Health 
Institute Edge of 
Amazing 
Conference, 11:30a‐
5p, Tulalip Casino 

11 
Providence Health 
Institute Edge of 
Amazing 
Conference, 9a‐5p, 
Tulalip Casino 
 
Clark Nuber Not‐
for‐Profit 
Leadership Summit   
8a‐2p 

12  13 

14  15 
Leadership 
Snohomish County 
Leadership Day 
Breakfast 7a‐8:30a 
Tulalip Casino 

16  17  18  19  20 

21  22  23 
Hero’s Café   9a‐1p 
Verdant Wellness 
Center 

24 
Regular Board 
Meeting 6p to 
8:30p 

25  26  27 

28  29  30  31       

 

October Reminders:  October 3rd Special Board Meeting:   Budget and interviews for Commissioner position 

Page 6



Accrual Basis Public Hospital District #2, Snohomish County
Balance Sheet

As of August 31, 2018

DRAFT

A B C D
Dec 31, 2017 Aug 31, 2018 $ Change Comments:

1 ASSETS
2 Current Assets
3 Cash Balance 1,853,495        3,273,464        1,419,969      
4 Other Current Assets 44,606,558      45,391,169      784,612          Includes Investments

5 Total Current Assets  46,460,053      48,664,633      2,204,581      
6 Total Long‐term & Fixed Assets 45,773,750      44,397,378      (1,376,372)      Includes Depreciation

7 TOTAL ASSETS 92,233,802      93,062,011      828,209         

8 LIABILITIES & EQUITY
9 Liabilities
10 Current Liabilities 2,066,262        1,262,155        (804,107)         Tenant Prepaid Lease Income

11 Long‐term Liabilities 2,050,919        2,009,566        (41,353)           2012 LTGO Bonds
12 Total Liabilities 4,117,182        3,271,721        (845,461)        
13 Total Equity 88,116,621      89,790,290      1,673,670       Annual Net Income/(Loss)

14 TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 92,233,802      93,062,011    828,209       

A B C D E F 
Aug Actual Aug Budget Fav/(Unfav) YTD Actual YTD Budget Fav/(Unfav)

1 INCOME
2 Ordinary Income 874,528             876,661             (2,133)              7,040,594       7,040,429        164                  

3 EXPENSES

4 Operating Expenses 242,783             188,451             (54,332)           1,490,440       1,533,881        43,441             

5 Depreciation Expense 164,886             164,854             (32)                    1,327,089       1,326,833        (256)                 
6 Program Expenses 481,800             606,525             124,726          4,033,087       4,909,204        876,117          

7 Total Expenses 889,469             959,830             70,361             6,850,616       7,769,918        919,302          

8 OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSE)

9 Total Other Income/(Expense) 342,466            234,813            107,653          1,483,692       1,878,502        (394,811)        
10 NET INCOME/(LOSS) 327,525           151,644           175,881          1,673,670       1,149,014       524,655         

Profit & Loss
August 2018

Verdant received dividends payments of $90,121 and an unrealized gain of $61,692 on our investment portfolio in August which closed with an 
ending market value of $44,996,682.  

Program grant commitments total $6,145,080 and $4,211,593 for 2018 and 2019 respectively.  $844,920 remains available to spend in 2018.

Revenue of $104,504 and expenses of $74,843 from the Kruger Clinic were incurred, netting to an additional operating income of $29,661 in 
August.

Monthly Highlights
August 2018

Page 7



Public Hospital District #2

Warrant Transaction
Number Date Payee      Amount Purpose 

13043 08/01/2018 Afrolatino Festival Seattle 2,000.00 Sponsor 7/29 event
13044 08/01/2018 Armstrong Services 2,329.75 July 2018 Janitorial & Carpet Cleaning
13045 08/01/2018 Consolidated Landscape Maintenance, Inc. 440.50 Aug 2018 Landscaping maintenance
13046 08/01/2018 Payden & Rygel 7,396.00 6/1‐6/30/18 Investment Advisory Services
13047 08/01/2018 Puget Sound Energy 48.44 Natural Gas VCWC
13048 08/01/2018 Snohomish County PUD 993.79 Electricity VCWC
13049 08/01/2018 Sound Publishing, Inc. 39.20 Legal Notice 7/25/18 Special Board Meeting
13050 08/01/2018 Third & Wall Art Group, LLC 879.00 2nd half of art install at VCWC
13051 08/01/2018 Turning Point Seattle 12,000.00 Award 296 ‐ Back to School Health Fair 2018
13052 08/01/2018 Waste Management 298.24 Garbage/Recycle
13053 08/01/2018 Michelle L Owen 150.00 Demo for National Night Out
13054 08/01/2018 Rene de los Santos 100.00 Dance Demo at National Night Out
13055 08/01/2018 Velia Lara 1,050.00 Instructor for Strengthening Families Program Positive Discipline for Parents
13056 08/01/2018 Sound Publishing, Inc. 169.37 12 month subscription The Herald
13057 08/01/2018 Corporate Security LLC 299.17 Parking lot security monitoring
13058 08/01/2018 Parsi Properties LLC 2,634.00 Aug 2018 ‐ Parking lot lease
13059 08/01/2018 Sandra S Huber 44.70 Reimbursement for Strengthening Families
13060 08/08/2018 DS Forensics, Inc 3,405.78 PRR ‐ Collection of records from Commissioners/ Charles Day/Carl Zapora
13061 08/08/2018 ELTEC Systems, LLC 264.96 Aug 2018 Elevator Maintenance
13062 08/08/2018 National Assoc of Social Workers 225.00 NB Annual Membership
13063 08/08/2018 Pacific Medical Centers(PacMed) 230.35 WC 175 ‐ Living Well Alliance
13064 08/08/2018 SCB NAACP 250.00 Ubuntu Multicultural Arts Expo 8/18
13065 08/13/2018 AmeriFlex Business Solutions 17.25 Jan 2017 FSA  Administration
13066 08/13/2018 Ash Consulting 105.50 Accounting Consulting
13067 08/13/2018 Azose 6,330.00 Property Management
13068 08/13/2018 Comcast 270.61 Telephone/Internet
13069 08/13/2018 UNITED WAY 260.00 1Q & 2Q 2018 Employee Charitable Contributions
13070 08/13/2018 Dataworks 2,736.44 IT Support / Social Worker Database Creation
13071 08/13/2018 McKinstry Co., LLC 1,015.68 HVAC Maintenance Contract VCWC
13072 08/13/2018 Northwest Church 100.00 Clean up for Hope & Health Fair
13073 08/13/2018 Property Management NW 999.42 June 2018 Maint
13074 08/13/2018 VanHouten Photography 375.00 Photos of NNO
13075 08/13/2018 Archbright 2,240.00 Salary Study Consulting Services
13076 08/13/2018 Comcast 525.42 Telephone/Internet
13077 08/13/2018 Lowe Graham Jones PLLC 234.50 July 2018 Trademark monitoring
13078 08/13/2018 Town of Woodway 500.00 Sponsorship & Marketing of Town Fair 8/18
13079 08/13/2018 Verizon 100.68 Jul 2 ‐ Aug 1, 2018 Cell Phones
13080 08/13/2018 City of Lynnwood 1,370.00 July 2018  After Hours Support (90 hrs)
13081 08/13/2018 Alexander Printing Co, Inc 272.12 Printing Case Management Services Brochures Qty 1000
13082 08/13/2018 Sandra Carrera 250.00 National Night Out & Meet Me at the Park‐ Zumba Demo and Instruction
13083 08/22/2018 Cocina MX 32 LLC 350.00 Deposit for Catering for Healthy Life 8/18‐8/19
13084 08/22/2018 Firmly Planted, LLC 125.00 Yoga Demo at NNO
13085 08/22/2018 Foster Pepper PLLC 99,628.35 Legal Jan‐July 2018
13086 08/22/2018 Lighthouse (formerly Discovia) 2,724.50 PRR July 2018
13087 08/22/2018 McKinstry Co., LLC 1,523.52 HVAC Maintenance Contract VCWC

Page 8



Warrant Transaction
Number Date Payee      Amount Purpose 

13088 08/22/2018 Sound Dietitians 1,729.65 WC 169 ‐ Nutrician Consulting/WC 170 ‐ Health Living Coaching Group
13089 08/22/2018 State Auditor's Office 1,916.22 2016‐2017 State Audit
13090 08/22/2018 Total Health 1,360.00 WC 176 ‐ Health Coaching
13091 08/22/2018 Alexander Printing Co, Inc 687.64 Printing 2017 Annual Report
13092 08/22/2018 Jason Becker Creative 1,102.50 Social Worker materials, 2017 annual report
13093 08/22/2018 Laura Miramontes 285.00 Childcare Design Your Healthy Life class
13094 08/22/2018 VOID 0.00 Void
13095 08/22/2018 Neopost 16.55 New postage meter
13096 08/22/2018 Regence Blueshield 5,745.31 Sept 2018 Health Insurance
13097 08/22/2018 Soluciones Digitales 5,000.00 WC 195 ‐ Multicultural Programming
13098 08/22/2018 Staples 72.28 Supplies
13099 08/22/2018 Susana Flores 465.00 Childcare for Strengthening Families
13100 08/22/2018 Yasaura Carvajal 240.00 Childcare for Strengthening Families
13101 08/31/2018 Aukema & Associates 800.00 July 2018 Website maintenance
13102 08/31/2018 Dataworks 4,346.37 IT Support / Social Worker Database Creation
13103 08/31/2018 Enduris 43,190.00 Annual Insuance Renewal
13104 08/31/2018 Guardian Security Systems, Inc. 240.00 Elevator Monitoring
13105 08/31/2018 McKinstry Co., LLC 2,508.29 HVAC Maintenance Contract VCWC
13106 08/31/2018 Parsi Properties LLC 2,634.00 Sept 2018 ‐ Parking lot lease
13107 08/31/2018 Principal 1,776.05 EE Life Insurance
13108 08/31/2018 Sound Publishing, Inc. 39.20 Legal Notice 8/22/18 Special Board Meeting
13109 08/31/2018 Wells Fargo 3,559.98 Misc.
13110 08/31/2018 YMCA of Greater Seattle. 1,950.00 WC 187 ‐ DPP
13111 08/31/2018 Electronic Business Machines 1,327.91 8/22‐9/21/18 Copy Machine; 5/22‐8/21/18 overage
13112 08/31/2018 Puget Sound Energy 48.40 Natural Gas
13113 08/31/2018 Waste Management 298.35 Garbage/Recycle
13114 08/31/2018 Consolidated Landscape Maintenance, Inc. 440.50 Sept 2018 Landscaping maintenance
13115 08/31/2018 Pride Electric 688.34 Lighting Repair in Foyer
13116 08/31/2018 Snohomish County PUD 993.01 Account #2052‐9931‐6
13117 08/31/2018 Payden & Rygel 7,469.00 7/1‐7/31/18 Investment Advisory Services

Total Warrants  248,231.79            

Wire/ACH Activity:

8/3/2018 Payroll 21,253.39 ACH payroll transfer
8/3/2018 Department of Treasury 8,038.31 Payroll taxes for 7/28/18 pay period ending
8/3/2018 Valic 3,546.72 Payroll 401(a)/457 Deposit
8/3/2018 Paychex 122.70 Fee for payroll processing 
8/17/2018 Payroll 20,109.18 ACH payroll transfer
8/17/2018 Department of Treasury 7,817.98 Payroll taxes for 8/11/18 pay period ending
8/17/2018 Valic 3,550.11 Payroll 401(a)/457 Deposit
8/17/2018 Paychex 108.28 Fee for payroll processing 
8/31/2018 Payroll 21,248.23 ACH payroll transfer
8/31/2018 Department of Treasury 7,891.76 Payroll taxes for 8/25/18 pay period ending
8/31/2018 Valic 3,528.41 Payroll 401(a)/457 Deposit
8/31/2018 Paychex 122.91 Fee for payroll processing 
8/12/2018 Wells Fargo Merchant Services 70.00 Merchant Services Page 9



Warrant Transaction
Number Date Payee      Amount Purpose 

Wire/ACH Activity:

8/15/2018 Alzheimer's Association Western & Central 7,209.16 Program Payment
8/15/2018 Boys & Girls Club of Snohomish County 20,519.58 Program Payment
8/15/2018 Cascade Bicycle Club Education Foundation 2,666.67 Program Payment
8/15/2018 Center for Human Services 32,279.16 Program Payment
8/15/2018 ChildStrive 50,150.16 Program Payment
8/15/2018 City of Lynnwood 8,718.33 Program Payment
8/15/2018 Cocoon House. 5,000.00 Program Payment
8/15/2018 Edmonds School District No. 15 109,713.42 Program Payment
8/15/2018 Edmonds Senior Center 9,666.67 Program Payment
8/15/2018 Homage Senior Services 59,420.00 Program Payment
8/15/2018 Kindering 11,517.17 Program Payment
8/15/2018 Korean Women's Association 5,000.00 Program Payment
8/15/2018 Mary Porter, RDN 162.50 Program Payment
8/15/2018 Medical Teams International 5,500.00 Program Payment
8/15/2018 PEPS 3,250.00 Program Payment
8/15/2018 Prescription Drug Assistance Foundation 4,166.67 Program Payment
8/15/2018 Project Access Northwest 10,416.67 Program Payment
8/15/2018 Puget Sound Christian Clinic 27,916.67 Program Payment
8/15/2018 Puget Sound Kidney Centers Foundation 3,333.33 Program Payment
8/15/2018 South Snohomish County Fire & Rescue 36,103.34 Program Payment
8/15/2018 Therapeutic Health Services 20,833.33 Program Payment
8/15/2018 Volunteers of America Western WA 6,750.42 Program Payment
8/15/2018 Wonderland Development Center 12,458.33 Program Payment
8/15/2018 Compass Health 14,857.80 Program Payment
8/27/2018 WA Department of Revenue 806.79 B&O/Retailing Sales Tax for July 2018
8/3/2018 AmeriFlex Business Solutions 208.21 FSA Payment
8/10/2018 AmeriFlex Business Solutions 381.54 FSA Payment
8/20/2018 AmeriFlex Business Solutions 70.00 FSA Payment
8/24/2018 AmeriFlex Business Solutions 749.64 FSA Payment

Total Wires/ACH Transactions 567,233.54            

Workers Compensation Claims Activity:

305398‐400 Aug‐18 Various Claimants/Vendors 136.60                     Administered by Eberle Vivian

Kruger Clinic Activity:

1001‐1014 Aug‐18 Various Claimants/Vendors 26,995.71                 Administered by Azose (Formerly PMNW)

Total Disbursements 842,597.64$           

Page 10



Transaction
Date Payer      Amount Purpose 

Deposits: 

8/1/2018 Swedish/Edmonds 803,703.16 Monthly leases
8/1/2018 Value Village 27,614.77 Monthly lease
8/6/2018 Raymond Liu, D.D.S. 3,661.64 Kruger Clinic monthly lease 
8/2/2018 Brian Takagi, MD 84.63 Kruger Clinic monthly lease 
8/13/2018 Seattle Skin & Laser 6,654.54 Kruger Clinic monthly lease 
8/6/2018 Puget Sound Gastro 27,677.81 Kruger Clinic monthly lease 
8/10/2018 Snohomish County 5,368.13 Levy
8/20/2018 Healthcare Realty Services, Inc. 4,663.72 Ground Lease
8/22/2018 WA State Health Care Authority 1,190,764.00 Final SFY 2010/2011 CPE Settlement 

Total Deposits 2,070,192.40$       

Page 11



 VERDANT HEALTH COMMISSION 
PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT #2 

SNOHOMISH COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 

WARRANT APPROVAL 
 

 We, the undersigned Board of Commissioners of Public Hospital District #2 of Snohomish 
County, Washington, do hereby certify that the merchandise or services hereinafter specified 
have been received and that Warrant Numbers 13043 through 13117 have been issued for 
payment in the amount of $248,231.79 These warrants are hereby approved. 
 
 
Attest: 
 
______________________________ _______________________________ 
Lisa M. King  Commissioner 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Commissioner 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Commissioner 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Commissioner 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Commissioner 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

 

Warrants Processed: 8-1-18 – 8-31-18  $248,231.79
   
Kruger Claims Pd: 8-1-18 – 8-31-18  26,995.71
   
Work Comp Claims Pd: 8-1-18 – 8-31-18  136.60
   
Payroll: 7-15-18 – 7-28-18

7-29-18 – 8-11-18 
8-12-18 – 8-25-18 

21,253.39 
20,109.18 
21,248.23 

   62,610.80
   
Electronic Payments: Payroll Taxes 

Valic Retirement 
Paychex 
Ameriflex 
Bank Fees 
WA State Dept Revenue  
Program Expenditures 

23,748.05 
10,625.24 

353.89 
1,409.39 

70.00 
806.79 

467,609.38 
   504,622.74
   
 Grand Total   $842,597.64

Page 12



 

 

Program Oversight Committee Summary Report September 2018 
 

 5 regular program applications: 
o 3 new requests 
o 2 renewal requests 

 Building Healthy Communities Fund: 
o Q&A with 5 applicants 
o Commissioner decision‐making  

 
New Regular Operating Funding Requests 
 
1.  CHC of Snohomish County – Dental 
Sealant Program 

Request Year 1  Request Year 2  Request Year 3 
$30,000     

Program Description:  a one‐time request for equipment to support a school‐based dental sealant program.  
The program applies a protective sealant on the molars of children ages 6‐7.    

Expected Results  CHC most recently served 9 Edmonds School District schools.  The goal would 
be to expand to 14 schools by 2019‐2020, serving approximately 500 children 
per year.  CHC would track the number of children assessed, sealants applied, 
fluoride treatments, dental risk assessments, and follow‐up appointments. 
Sealants have been shown to protect teeth; school age children w/o sealants 
have almost 3X more molar cavities than those with them.  
 

Use of Funds & Costs  Verdant funds would be used to purchase equipment for the program (3 
portable dental units/compressors and 2 adjustable chairs). The current 
equipment was grant‐funded in 2012 and is at the end of its life. The ongoing 
program and staffing costs would be paid through Medicaid reimbursement. 

 
2.   Domestic Violence Services of 
Snohomish County – Community Health 
Advocate  
 

Request Year 1  Request Year 2  Request Year 3 
$96,000  $96,000  $96,000 

Program Description:    a multi‐year request to support a dedicated Community Health Advocate in South 
Snohomish County.  The program would establish a full‐time staff member and presence in South Snohomish 
County with the goal of providing a safe space for DV victims and their families to seek support. 
 
Expected Results  The goal would be to provide services to 4,000 South County residents each 

year.  Snohomish County Superior Court receives 180‐200 DV cases each 
month.  In Lynnwood there are typically 30‐45 cases, plus 45‐50 in Edmonds per 
month. The program would focus on three outcomes: increased access to 
primary care, increased awareness of services, and increase access to 
behavioral health services. 
 

Use of Funds & Costs  Funds used for new community advocate salary and for rent for a South County 
office. The budget includes revenue estimate from other DVS sources. 

Page 13



 

 

 
3.     Wonderland Development Center – 
Clinic for Prenatal Substance Exposure 

Request Year 1  Request Year 2  Request Year 3 

 $196,757  176,872  $132,163 
Program Description: support for a new center in South Snohomish County specializing in supporting children 
birth to 12 that were exposed to substances prenatally and to support their families.  The program has been 
developed in consultation with Dr. Susan Astley, the director of the WA state Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder 
(FASD) clinic at UW. The clinic is scheduled to open in 2019 and would be located in the North 
Lynnwood/Martha Lake area. 
 
Expected Results  The clinic would serve as a “home” for children and families with prenatal 

substance exposure. The center will offer assessment, diagnosis, treatment, 
resources, education and prevention.  The program would expect to serve 260 
individuals in the first year (104 kids and 156 parents/caregivers) with 
outcomes focused on increased parent efficacy and improvement in frequency 
and severity of disruptive behaviors.   
 

Use of Funds & Costs  Funds will support a contract psychologist, physician, and family advocate, and 
will house a speech language pathologist, OT, and social worker.  Many services 
are reimbursable through insurance or public sources.  Wonderland’s request 
steps down over the three years as the organization expects to increase 
fundraising efforts.  
 

 
Renewal Funding Requests 
 
4.      Domestic Violence Services – 
Prevention & Education Program 

Request Year 1  Request Year 2  Request Year 3 

$22,266    $22,266    $22,266   
Program Description:  a renewal request for a teen dating violence prevention program for teens.  Funds are 
used for a part‐time educator who conducts outreach in South Snohomish County and makes presentation 
through schools and other community groups.   
Expected Results  The program connected to >11,000 individuals last year at venues like school 

assemblies, health classes, and community events.  The program uses surveys 
to track increase in knowledge. 
Objectives for new three‐year period:  

1. Offer Teen Dating Violence Prevention Education to Middle and High 
school students an average of 8 times per month; 

2. Provide agency materials (available in 7 languages) to 30 new locations 
per year; 

3. Provide staff to hold a community education training 3 times per year 
on specific topics to be decided.  

 
Use of Funds & Costs  Request is for $22,266 for three years (same as current level).  Funds support 

20 hours a week of educator position. 
 

 

Page 14



 

 

 
5.      Boys and Girls Clubs of Snohomish 
County – Healthy Habits Program 

 

Request Year 1  Request Year 2  Request Year 3 

$294,580   $302,328  $310,308 

Program Description:  request for an afterschool activity and nutrition program that includes intramural 
sports and cooking programs at 7 different locations.  The program is offered at schools and B&G club sites at 
no cost to participants.   
Expected Results  The program has exceeded participation goals and done a good job of engaging 

families in events (2,375 total took part in activities last year).  The program 
tracks improvement in fitness levels as a result of participating in the program.  
In the most recent year, the program served 716 unduplicated individuals (goal 
was 700) and met the goal of seeing improvement in Fitnessgram measurement 
for 75% of participants.  
 

Use of Funds & Costs  The request would increase funding from $246,235 per year to $294,580 per 
year (a 19% increase).  The increase is requested to meet the increased number 
of youth participating (increase to 900 unduplicated), assure a ratio of 15:1 for 
youth/coach and to replace aging equipment. 
 

 
Program Committee Recommendations (Commissioners Knowles & Knutsen)  
 
Recommended for Funding: 
 
 Community Health Center of Snohomish County – School Sealant Program: recommended for full funding 

at $30,000 on a one‐time basis.  The committee felt that the program connected to a Verdant priority 
(dental care) and also addressed the issue with a prevention focus.  The committee would like CHC to report 
back on the referrals of students for follow‐up dental care.  
 

 Wonderland Development Center – Clinic for Prenatal Substance Exposure:  recommended for funding as 
requested over three years.  The committee members felt that the program addressed a key community 
issue (substance use exposure for children) and provided an important new service in South Snohomish 
County.  As usual, the committee members would like to see that program goals are met each year for 
continued funding. 

 
 Domestic Violence Services – Prevention & Education Program:  recommended for funding as requested 

over three years.  The committee felt the program addressed a community need and has shown good results 
to date.   

 
 Boys and Girls Clubs of Snohomish County – Healthy Habits Program:  recommended for partial funding at 

$295,000 per year for three years.  When renewed for two years in 2016, Verdant increased funding and 
asked the applicant to seek out other funding sources.  Verdant is still the primary funder on the program, 
with the applicant making progress on attracting some small grant funding.  The committee members would 
like the funding to be contingent on serving 200 more participants per year.   

Page 15



 

 

 
 

More Information/Follow‐Up Requested 
 

 Domestic Violence Services of Snohomish County – Community Health Advocate:  the committee members 
were interested in the proposal but requested some additional information.  Question included:  

o To what extent are there services available or not available (ex. housing) if new DVS clients are 
identified? What program or service limitations should we be aware of that would impact the 
program’s ability to help South Snohomish County clients?  

o How many people served through this program are newly identified clients vs. those already served 
in Everett currently by DVS? 

 

  

Page 16



Building Healthy Community Fund Q&A 

Expected  
Timeslot 

Applicant – Project 
Name 

Questions 

8:30‐8:45  City of Edmonds – 
Outdoor Fitness Zones 

Your application requests project funds over three years: 
1. Can you explain the timing of the request and when you would expect the 

improvements to be complete?  
 

2. If funds were available in a shorter timeframe would that accelerate the 
timeline?  

 
8:45—9:00  City of Mountlake 

Terrace – Evergreen 
Playfields 

1. Can you explain where the project stands in terms of permits, 
environmental and other regulatory review? What milestones or reviews 
need to be cleared before the facility is completed?   
 

2. How have nearby residents responded to the proposal, in particular to the 
ideas of increased usage, lighting, traffic, etc.?  How has the city addressed 
any neighborhood concerns?  

 
9:00‐9:15  Sea Mar – Lynnwood 

Clinic 
1. Your proposal notes that community health centers are only serving 50% of 

the low‐income population and 42% of the Medicaid population in the 
area. Some of these individuals are likely seen by other (non‐CHC) 
providers—do you have any other data showing how many people are 
going without care because provider capacity is not available?  

 
2. In 2016, the requested Verdant contribution to the clinic was $1m, and 

now you are requesting $2m.  Could you explain the increased request and 
where this fits with other possible funding sources, including from Sea 
Mar’s reserves or government grants?  

 
9:15‐9:30  Medical Teams 

International – Mobile 
Dental Multi‐Site 
Delivery Vehicle 

We would like to better understand the expanded capacity to serve South 
Snohomish County as a result of this vehicle acquisition:   
 
1. How many additional residents served or South County clinics can you 

expect to serve with this new vehicle compared to the current one? 
 

2. What do you expect to do with the existing vehicle that Verdant 
contributed 50% of the costs to?  

 
9:30‐9:45  CHC of Snohomish 

County – Integrated Pain 
Management & 
Recovery Services 

1. What data, research or other information can you share about the 
effectiveness and measurable outcomes for the pain management 
program? 

2. How does the proposed project address the opioid crisis, particularly from 
a prevention standpoint?  

3. We would like to better understand operating financials for this project. 
Can you provide an operating profit and loss statement that includes 
revenue and expense forecasts for the programs offered at the facility?   
 

   

Page 17



Applicant – 
Project Name 

Funding Request  Notes/Recommendation 

YR1   YR2  YR3  Total 
 

1. City of 
Edmonds – 
Outdoor 
Fitness Zones 

$49,500  $12,750  $107,750  $170,000   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. City of 
Mountlake 
Terrace – 
Evergreen 
Playfields 

$1,000,000      $1,000,000   
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Sea Mar – 
Lynnwood 
Clinic 

$2,000,000      $2,000,000 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. Medical 
Teams 
International – 
Mobile Dental   

$358,917 
 

    $358,917   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5. CHC of 
Snohomish 
County – 
Integrated 
Pain 
Management 
& Recovery 
Services 

$1,700,000  $800,000    $2,500,000 
 

 

Total  $5,108,417   $812,750   $107,750  $6,028,917 

 

Page 18



1.  City of Edmonds - Edmonds Outdoor Fitness 
 

 
 
 
2.  City of Mountlake Terrace - Evergreen Playfields 
 
 

Request Year 1 Request Year 2 Request Year 3 Total Request 

$49,500 $12,750 $107,750 $170,000 

Program Description:   Support the installation of two outdoor fitness zones (durable exercise equipment) in 
Mathay Ballinger and City Parks in Edmonds. Each fitness zone would have 8-12 pieces of durable equipment, 
and the City would also provide free fitness classes and orientations at the spaces. 
 

Community Need 
Addressed 

Application references 36% of adults not meeting daily physical activity guidelines 
and 25% of population is considered obese.  Also referenced that the cost of gym 
memberships and exercise programs is a barrier.  
 

Expected Results Will run orientation and programs at outdoor fitness zones.  Prepared to do survey 
work with participants and consider random usage counts. 
 

Use of Funds & Costs Includes City of Edmonds and resources from the National Fitness Campaign.   

Partnerships Would partner with National Fitness Campaign on app and signage, private 
instructors for programming. 
 

Request Year 1 Request Year 2 Request Year 3 Total Request 

$333,333 $333,333 $333,333 $1,000,000 

Program Description:   A request to replace the existing dirt athletic field and replace it with synthetic turf 
multi-use facility with lighting.  The field would be used for baseball, softball, soccer, lacrosse, and ultimate 
disk. 

Community Need 
Addressed 

The application references applicable data on high rates of youth and adult obesity 
and low rates of youth and adult physical activity.   
 

Expected Results The goal of the project is to increase physical activity levels for families.  The 
estimated use of the facility would increase from 200 hours per year for the existing 
dirt field to 1,850 hours for the new facility, and to attract 2,000 new users to 
facility.  The application also references tracking reduction in BMI, but it is not clear 
how that would be collected.  
 

Use of Funds & Costs The project budget includes $586k of additional assumed revenue.  The base 
budget assumes rubber infill. 
 

Partnerships Many letters of support from sports teams, policymakers, and clubs.  Also 
references partnership w/school district. 
 

Page 19



3.  Sea Mar CHC - Lynnwood Clinic 
 

 

  

Request Year 1 Request Year 2 Total Request 

$2,000,000  $2,000,000 

 
Program Description:   Integrated community health clinic with medical, dental and behavioral health 
services, including mental health therapy and substance abuse treatment services. The clinic would be located 
in Lynnwood at the current site of Sea Mar’s behavioral health clinic. 
 

Community Need 
Addressed 

There are an estimated 35,000 low-income people (<200% of the federal 
poverty guidelines) in the Lynnwood area who are currently not being served by 
community health centers (cites UDS Mapper data). Notes that CHC of 
Snohomish is currently serving only 50% of the low-income population, 46% of 
the uninsured population, and 42% of the Medicaid population in the area.  
 

Expected Results Sea Mar anticipates the following service levels: 

• Medical clinic to serve 5,500 unduplicated medical patients with 13,760 
encounters per year once fully operational. 

• 3,000 unduplicated patients and 11,040 encounters from its general 
behavioral health providers in a year, and an additional 800 patients 
with 3,200 encounters per year from the expanded Child and Family 
behavioral health program. 

• Dental providers will see 3,400 patients annually with 8,500 
encounters. 
 

Use of Funds & Costs The renovation would take 9-to-12 months and cost approximately $2.8 million.  
Sea Mar would apply funding from Verdant and its own cash reserves toward 
the renovation. 
 

Partnerships In Snohomish County, Providence Regional Medical Center collaborates with 
Sea Mar through Primacy Care task force as well as a partnership in support of 
Sea Mar’s primary care residency program. The new Lynnwood clinic will be a 
rotation site for the residency program.  
 

Page 20



4.  Medical Teams International - Mobile Dental Program Multi-Site Delivery Vehicle 
 

Request Year 1 Request Year 2 Total Request 

$358,917   $358,917 

Program Description:   Mobile, multi-site dental vehicle equipped with 3 portable dental operatories. The 
model would be different than MTI's existing RV because the operatories could be dropped and set up at 
partner sites. 
 

Community Need 
Addressed 

Program would serve individuals without dental insurance.  A large service gap 
is for seniors; 70% of seniors have no dental coverage.  

Expected Results MTI has a track record with its existing mobile dental program—the program 
should be able to provide 72 clinics per year.  Moving from the RV style van, 
which contains two dental operatories, to a mobile truck containing three 
dental operatories would increase capacity by 50%.  

Use of Funds & Costs MTI would use private fundraising to raise remaining cost ($204k) of the 
vehicle. 

Partnerships MTI’s model relies on community partners sites to host clinics (ex. EdCC, senior 
housing, senior centers, the food bank, and churches).   

 
5.  CHC of Snohomish County – Integrated Pain Management & Recovery Services 
 

Request Year 1 Request Year 2 Total Request 

$1,700,000 $800,000 $2,500,000 

Program Description:   Integrated pain management program and substance use recovery services in new 
10,000 square foot space adjacent to CHC Edmonds Primary Care Clinic. Includes potential to include 
behavioral health and other services.  The chronic pain clinic would include OT/PT, psychology, physician and 
other support.  The substance use recovery program would include outpatient support.   
 

Community Need 
Addressed 

The application notes that there are similar physical, social, emotional effects of 
chronic pain and substance use disorders.  The current CHC Edmonds Clinic 
serves 15,400 unduplicated district patients (majority are low-income). There 
are no comparable chronic pain programs in South Snohomish County. 
 

Expected Results Would expect to serve 600-1000 unduplicated through additional services.  CHC 
can track 20+ quality of care outcome measures of health as part of existing 
reporting processes.   

Use of Funds & Costs Total expected cost would be ~$5 million with CHC using organizational and 
grant resources to fund remaining 50% of costs.  Land also provided by CHC. 
 

Partnerships Unique partnership and co-location of services with an integrated pain clinic 
and recovery services.  The application also notes opportunities and early 
discussions about additional services for high need patients with multiple 
needs. 

Page 21



Verdant Community Wellness Center Summary 
August/September 2018 

 

Completed Programs (August/September) 
 

1. General Community and Provider Events  Attendance 
1. Evergreen Healthcare Dementia Training (7/24; 8/29) 
2. Monthly Hero’s Café for Veterans (7/24; 8/28) 
3. North Sound ACH Meeting (7/30) 
4. Korean Women’s Association Everyday Prevention Workshops (8/2; 9/6)*  
5. ARC Mothers of Children with Disabilities Monthly Support Network  (8/4) 
6. Parkinson’s Disease AM & PM Support Group  (8/6; 9/11) 
7. SHIBA Update Trainings (8/7) 
8. Evergreen Home Health Team Meetings (8/8, 21; 9/12) 
9. Strengthening Families Childcare Provider Training (8/9) 
10. Sebastian’s Place Veteran’s Housing Team Meeting (8/9, 23) 
11. Verdant Partner Roundtable (8/10) 
12. Edmonds School District Health Services Meeting (8/16) 
13. Welcome to Medicare Monthly Workshops (8/17; 9/21) 
14. Edmonds School District Family Advocate & Liaison Team Meeting (8/28) 
15. Swedish Edmonds Core Leadership Retreat (8/30) 
16. League of Women Voters Children’s Committee  (9/7) 
17. Resource Connectors Meeting (9/11) 
18. Snohomish County Early Intervention Providers Meeting (9/13) 
19. DDA Region 2 Training (9/18) 
20. Understanding Disability Benefits Provider Training (9/19) 
21. Veteran’s Cultural Competence Training (9/20) 
22. Sea Mar Weekly Health Insurance &  Basic Food Enrollment (weekly) 
23. Ongoing – Community Support for Prescription Assistance  (weekly)* 

15/session 
100/session 

10 
40/session 

25 
10‐12/session 

25 
25/session 

12 
6/session 

20 
18 

15/session 
12 
30 
12 
30 
16 
10 
49 
36 

varies 
varies 

 
 

2. Nutrition and Healthy Behaviors  Attendance 
1. South County Walks Program (weekly 6/25 – 9/24) 
2. Surviving & Thriving with Chronic Kidney Disease (7/11 – 8/15); (9/12‐10/17)* 
3. Weekly Healthy Living Coaching Group ( 7/24,31; 8/7,14,21,28; 9/4,11,18,25)* 
4. Road Back to Life Kidney Support Group (7/24; 8/28; 9/25) 
5. Summer Salads Cooking Demo (7/26)* 
6. Diabetes Support Group (8/8; 9/12) 
7. Cooking Demo: Adults on SNAP – Fruit & Vegetable Rx Class (7/26; 8/23)* 
8. AHA Teens Cook with Heart (8/7, 8, 9, 14, 15, 16) 
9. Summer Grilling Cooking Demo (8/9)*  
10. Light & Refreshing Smoothies Cooking Demo (8/16)* 
11. Produce from the Peak of Summer Cooking Demos (8/20)* 
12. Packing Healthy Lunches Family Cooking Class (8/26)* 
13. What Can I Eat?  ADA Series for Type 2 Diabetes (9/4‐ 9/25)* 
14. World Cuisine:  Latin Flavors Cooking Demo (9/10)* 
15. End of Summer Bounty Cooking Demos ( 9/17)* 
16. Cooking for One or Two (9/18)* 

         10+/week 
15/session 

15‐20/session 
8‐10/session 

24 
6‐8/session 

15‐20/session 
12/session 

23 
22 
21 
15 

10/session 
24 
20 
18 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



Verdant Community Wellness Center Summary 
August/September 2018 

 

3. Behavioral Health & Substance Use   Attendance 
1. Brain Health and Wellness Classes (7/ 23, 26; 8/1, 8; 9/17, 19)* 
2. Family Caregiver Support Group (8/2, 16; 9/6) 
3. Gender Diversity Family Support Group (9/9) 
4. NAMI Connections Mental Health Support Group (7/26; 8/9 , 23; 9/13) 
5. Adult Children of Alcoholics Weekly Support Group (weekly) 
6. Veterans Drop‐In Support  (weekly ‐ City of Lynnwood & monthly ‐ County) 

2‐8 /session 
8 /session 
varies 

4‐6 /session 
12‐18/week 

varies 
 

4. Other Programs  Attendance 
1. Play and Learn Group, Wonderland Development Center (weekly)*  20‐30/week 

 

Upcoming Programs (October) 
A. General Community and Provider Events  

1. Monthly Hero’s Café for Veterans (September 25; October 23) 
2. Parkinson’s Disease AM & PM Support Groups  (October  1) 
3. SHIBA Update Trainings (October  2) 
4. Korean Women’s Association Everyday Prevention Workshops (October 4)*  
5. Family  & Kinship Caregiver Support Groups (October 5, 19) 
6. ARC Mothers of Children with Disabilities Monthly Support Network  (October  6) 
7. Evergreen Home Health Team Meetings (October  9, 17) 
8. Snohomish County Early Intervention Providers Meeting (October 11) 
9. Early Achievers Childcare Provider Training (October 13) 
10. Licensed Childcare Center Orientation (October  16) 
11. Welcome to Medicare Monthly Workshops (October  19) 

B. Nutrition and Healthy Behaviors 
1. Surviving & Thriving with Chronic Kidney Disease (Sept 12 – October 17)* 
2. The MIND Diet ‐ Eating for Better Brain Health (September 24)* 
3. Cooking Demo for Seniors on SNAP – Monthly FINI Training  (September 27; October 25)* 
4. Weekly Healthy Living Coaching Group (September 28; October 2, 9, 16, 23, 30)* 
5. Road Back to Life Kidney Support Group (September 28; October 23) 
6. Cooking Demo: Gluten Free & Dairy Free Cooking (October 4)* 
7. Diabetes Support Group (October 10) 
8. Cooking Demo: Food Preservation  (October 15)*  
9. Beginning Tai Chi (October 15 ‐ November 5)* 
10. Using Nutrition to Manage Heart Health Series (October 18 ‐ Nov 1)* 

C. Behavioral Health & Substance Use Focus 
1. Brain Health and Wellness Classes (September 24; October  9, 17)* 
2. NAMI Connections Mental Health Support Group (September 27; October  11, 25) 
3. Managing Difficult Emotions (October 2 – November 20)* 
4. Living Well with Chronic Pain (October 2 – December 6) 
5. Mindfulness Self Compassion for Providers (October 4 – November 17)* 
6. Gender Diversity Family Support Group (October 14) 
7. Mindfulness Skill‐building & Practice Group (October 17 – December 19) 
8. Adult Children of Alcoholics Weekly Support Group (weekly) 
9. Veterans Drop‐In Support  (weekly ‐ Lynnwood & monthly ‐ County)           

 

* = Grant / Program Funded Partners 

Page 23



September 2018 Multicultural Program & Outreach Report 
 
Strengthening Families:  This is a 7‐week parenting class for parents who have not 
participated before and who want more cooperative, positive, and respectful relationships 
with their teenagers. Single parents are welcome to participate. Parents and youth 10‐14 
years old participate in the workshop where trained facilitators help parents to support their 
youth developing skills to manage peer pressure and build a strong future.  
 
Design your Life for Health: August 6th, 13th, 20th and 27th at Verdant Community Wellness 
Center. These series of 4‐workshop focus on inspiring, supporting and educating Spanish 
speaking members of our community in simple yet powerful ways to take care of their 
health, their wellbeing while navigating the resources available in their community. The 
workshops include self‐advocacy, communication and collaboration for common goals 
 

Upcoming programs: 

Hands‐On only CPR: October 20th Hands‐Only CPR is CPR without mouth‐to‐mouth breaths. 
It is recommended for use by people who see a teen or adult collapse in an “out‐of‐hospital” 
setting (such as at home, at work or in a park). This class will be open to the community and 
offered in Spanish. 

  

  
 

 
 

 

Page 24



 

September 2018 Marketing Report 

 

The Canopy Newsletter 

• Early planning underway for distribution end of October/early November 
• Content will feature a focus on access to care, highlighting prescription assistance 

 

Conference & Forums 

• Research and planning conducted to shift structure from full-day conference to half-day conference for 
community health providers, and to add additional events in 2019 that will include a “community health 
listening session” for elected officials and a weekend community event for the general public.  

 

Community Art 

• Working with the artist at National Night Out and the Fair on 44th, we interacted with more than 400 
community members who wrote or drew contributions to this project.  

• We provided an update in September e-Newsletter and will be included in The Canopy, with an invitation to 
come by the office to participate between now and the end of November. Project will be completed and 
installed in 2019. 

Page 25


	00- Comm-Agenda_09-26-18
	01- Comm-Minutes_8-22-18
	02- OCT 2018
	03- Summary Sheet Aug
	04- Check Register Aug
	05- Warrants Aug
	06- ProgramBoardSummarySept2018



